Archaeological Institute of America

EXTRACT FROM THE BULLETIN OF THE INSTITUTE

THIRTY-FOURTH ANNUAL REPORT

OF THE

MANAGING COMMITTEE

OF THE

AMERICAN SCHOOL OF CLASSICAL STUDIES AT ATHENS

1914-1915
Archaeological Institute of America

EXTRACT FROM THE BULLETIN OF THE INSTITUTE

THIRTY-FOURTH ANNUAL REPORT

OF THE

MANAGING COMMITTEE

OF THE

AMERICAN SCHOOL OF CLASSICAL STUDIES AT ATHENS

1914-1915
ARCHAEOLOGICAL INSTITUTE OF AMERICA

Professor Bernadotte Perrin, Yale University, New Haven, Conn.
Professor Edward Delavan Perry, Columbia University, New York, N. Y.
Professor William Carey Poland, Brown University, Providence, R. I.
Professor W. K. Prentice, Princeton University, Princeton, N. J.
Professor Louise F. Randolph, Mount Holyoke College, South Hadley, Mass.
Professor Horatio M. Reynolds (Secretary), Yale University, New Haven, Conn.
Professor D. M. Robinson, Johns Hopkins University, Baltimore, Md.
Dr. Edward Robinson, Metropolitan Museum, New York, N. Y.
Professor Paul Shorey, University of Chicago, Chicago, Ill.
Professor Charles Forster Smyth, University of Wisconsin, Madison, Wis.
Professor H. De F. Smith, Amherst College, Amherst, Mass.
Professor Herbert Weir Smyth, Harvard University, Cambridge, Mass.
Professor Frank B. Tarbell, University of Chicago, Chicago, Ill.
Professor Charles C. Torrey (ex officio, as Chairman of the Managing Committee of the School in Palestine), Yale University, New Haven, Conn.
Professor Alice Walton, Wellesley College, Wellesley, Mass.
Professor William E. Waters, New York University, New York, N. Y.
President Benjamin Ide Wheeler, University of California, Berkeley, Cal.
Professor John Williams White, Harvard University, Cambridge, Mass.
Professor Clarence H. Young, Columbia University, New York, N. Y.

COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES WHICH COOPERATE IN THE SUPPORT OF THE SCHOOL

ADELBERT COLLEGE OF WESTERN RESERVE UNIVERSITY.
AMHERST COLLEGE.
BROWN UNIVERSITY.
BRYN MAWR COLLEGE.
COLLEGE OF THE CITY OF NEW YORK.
COLUMBIA UNIVERSITY.
CORNELL UNIVERSITY.
DARTMOUTH COLLEGE.
HARVARD UNIVERSITY.
JOHNS HOPKINS UNIVERSITY.
LELAND STANFORD JUNIOR UNIVERSITY.
MOUNT HOLYOKE COLLEGE.
NEW YORK UNIVERSITY.
PRINCETON UNIVERSITY.
SMITH COLLEGE.
UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA.
UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO.
UNIVERSITY OF MICHIGAN.
UNIVERSITY OF PENNSYLVANIA.
UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN.
UNIVERSITY OF VERMONT.
VASSAR COLLEGE.
WELLESLEY COLLEGE.
WESLEYAN UNIVERSITY.
WILLIAMS COLLEGE.
YALE UNIVERSITY.

SCHOOL OF CLASSICAL STUDIES AT ATHENS

TRUSTEES OF THE SCHOOL

Mr. Justice William C. Loring (President).
Mr. William Amory Gardner (Secretary).
Mr. Allen Curtis (Treasurer).
Mr. Alexander S. Cochran.
Mr. F. P. Fish.
Professor Basil L. Gildersleeve.
Mr. James Loeb.
Professor William M. Sloane.
Professor Herbert Weir Smyth.
Mr. F. A. Vanderlip.
Professor James R. Wheeler.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Chairman of the Managing Committee, ex officio.
The Secretary of the Managing Committee, ex officio.
The Treasurer of the Managing Committee, ex officio.
The President of the Archaeological Institute, ex officio.
Professor D'Ooge and Professor Allinson, until 1916.
Professor Bates and Professor Caverno, until 1917.
THIRTY-FOURTH ANNUAL REPORT OF THE AMERICAN SCHOOL OF CLASSICAL STUDIES
AT ATHENS
1914-1915

To the Council of the Archaeological Institute of America:

GENTLEMEN—I take pleasure in transmitting to you the annual report of the Managing Committee of the American School of Classical Studies at Athens to the Trustees of the School, to be printed with the annual reports of the Institute.

Very truly yours,

J. R. WHEELER,
Chairman of the Managing Committee.

To the Trustees of the American School of Classical Studies at Athens:

GENTLEMEN—I have the honor to report to you on the affairs of the School for the year ending August 31, 1915.

The death of Professor J. Irving Manatt, Professor in Brown University, took place on February 13, 1915. Professor Manatt became a member of the Managing Committee in 1903, shortly after his appointment to his professorship in Brown University. For years before this, however, when he was U. S. Consul in Athens, he had been familiar with the School, and had often shown his interest in its work. His profound and enthusiastic belief in the permanent value of the contribution of Greek civilization to the world, and his power of presenting this belief in an interesting and lively way made him a persuasive advocate of classical studies. The admirable manner, too, in which he translated and edited Tsountas's work on Mycenaean antiquities placed a large circle of scholars and readers under obligation to him.
By the death, on June 9, 1915, of Professor William R. Ware, Professor Emeritus in Columbia University, the Managing Committee has lost one of its oldest members and one who rendered most important service to the School in its earlier years. Professor Ware was elected to the Committee in 1885, at the time when the plan of erecting a building on the slopes of Lycabettus was first proposed. He planned the house (see fifth and sixth Annual Reports) which has been occupied by the School for nearly thirty years, and, since the recent addition to the building conforms closely in style to the original part and was indeed thought of by Mr. Ware at the beginning, he may be said to have determined the general character of the enlarged structure. In 1890 Professor Ware was in Athens for a considerable time, and gave his services to carry out certain improvements in the house and grounds, which were much needed. For a good many years he made the arrangements for the meetings of the Managing Committee in the rooms of the School of Architecture, at Columbia, and in many ways he showed an unfailing interest in the welfare of the School.

A third loss to the Committee, though strictly falling outside the period covered by this report, may be mentioned here. On September 12, 1915, the death of Professor Martin L. D'Ooge of the University of Michigan occurred. Professor D'Ooge was elected to the Managing Committee in 1888; he was Director of the School in 1886–1887, when he laid the cornerstone of the present building. Almost exactly twenty-six years later he laid the cornerstone of the recent addition. For over thirty years he has kept in close touch with the actual work of the School both in this country and in Greece where he spent much time, especially in connection with work for his excellent book on the Acropolis. His frank and kindly nature, and quiet enthusiasm made him a ready helper in all things that concerned the School, and he will be sorely missed in its management.

Two new members have been added to the Managing Committee within the year—Professor Caroline M. Galt of Mt. Holyoke College and Professor Alice Walton of Wellesley.

The Managing Committee welcomes most heartily the desire for a closer relation with your Board in the management of the School, and they have amended their Regulations to bring them into harmony with the revised by-laws of the Trustees. The office of a special Treasurer of the Managing Committee has been abolished, thereby greatly simplifying the keeping of the books. Regulation II, inasmuch as the Committee no longer has a separate treasurer, has been amended by striking out the words "shall disburse the annual income of the School," but since some further changes in regard to arrangements for preparing the budget have been proposed, the Regulation has in this report been left in its original form, and will be revised in the next one.

It is a great satisfaction that the addition to the School building is now finished. The Director reports the library as being once more in order, with ample room for its normal expansion. The fact that the original part of the building was found, after work had been started, to be structurally in a bad condition has quite doubled the expense of the whole undertaking, but no one can question the economic wisdom of providing for radical repairs when the building operations were going on. Every possible care has been taken by the Director and Mr. Thompson that all the work should be carefully done, and we may feel confident that the School is now housed in a thoroughly serviceable building.

In spite of the perturbed conditions of life in Europe, the work of the year has gone forward quietly and with a reasonable degree of regularity. There have been, however, but four regular students in attendance, Dr. L. R. Dean, Fellow of the School, Mr. E. H. Swift, Fellow of the Institute, Dr. Stephen B. Luce, Norton Fellow of Harvard University, and Mr. W. S. Thompson, Fellow in Architecture, the latter superintending the work of construction on the building. Miss Alice Leslie Walker, former Fellow of the School, has also been at work in Greece for much of the year.

Journeys have been made to Crete, to Aetolia, Acarnania and Epirus, and of course to the sites of importance nearer Athens. Of the Fellows Mr. Swift has been at work in the management of the excavations and in the preparation of a study of the recently discovered sculptures; he was also in Rome for a time during the winter. Dr. Dean has been engaged in the study of the Latin inscriptions found at Corinth. This being his first year in Athens, he has also spent much time in more general work. Since the students have all been persons of considerable maturity, much
formal lecturing has not been called for, but during the winter the Director held exercises on the Acropolis and in the Epigraphical Museum, and Messrs. Dinsmoor and Blegen have given some lectures on monuments outside the Acropolis. For a time during the spring much work in Corinth fell to the latter and to Mr. Swift, since the Director was for several weeks confined to his room with an injured leg.

The excavations at Corinth were resumed in the autumn of last year and carried on until Christmas time. These have been mainly in the region of the Peraibolus of Apollo, the location of which agrees perfectly with the description of Pausanias. The discovery also of the eastern limit of the Agora is a topographical result of importance. The excavations of 1914 and 1915 have brought to light an interesting and impressive series of Roman portrait statues of Augustan times. Some of these are in an excellent state of preservation and are of good workmanship.

The perseverance of the excavators in seeking for a Mycenaean site in the neighborhood of Corinth has at least been rewarded by the discovery, on a slight elevation near the sea and the line of the railway to the south and west, of an early settlement. There are apparently clear traces of a building of the "Megaron" type, and the pottery exhibits are extensive range of Mycenaean forms. A very interesting series of potsherds has been obtained by sinking a deep trench (some 5 metres) down to hard-pan. The deposit is regularly stratified and reaches back to neolithic times, thus yielding valuable specimens of early pottery in regular sequence.

Mr. Blegen, who has had charge of these excavations, and to whom much credit is due for all his work, has had the great advantage of help from Mr. Wace, the Director of the British School. Mr. Wace most generously placed his unusual collection, which sheds light on the conditions in Greece:

In one aspect our work has a new character—as a recognized means of saving the poorer people of one small community from acute distress. The economic stagnation due to the European war coming before recovery had more than begun from the great strain of the two Balkan wars, together with the increase in the cost of necessaries of life—due also to the European war—has made conditions very difficult throughout the country. The Excavation Fund this year comes very near being a War Relief Fund.

In the matter of publication the following facts may be noted: The Journal of Archaeology will shortly print a report of Miss Walker's and Miss Goldman's excavations at Halae, and soon also an account of the recent discoveries at Corinth may be expected. Mr. Dinsmoor's extensive study of the Propylaea and western slope of the Acropolis had gone forward satisfactorily, and he now expects to be able to complete his task in another year. There is still vexatious delay in completing the book on the Erechtheum. This is due to the great difficulty of uniting the efforts of several different authors, who are extremely busy with their own pressing occupations. The editor of the publication, Dr. Paton, however, reports progress, and he is certainly doing all in his power to finish his work. Meanwhile he has himself gathered a good deal of new and valuable historical material.

Visitors have naturally been few during the year, but the Director has had the pleasure of welcoming Professor and Mrs. Montgomery of the School in Jerusalem, Rev. Willard Reed of the Brown and Nichols School in Cambridge, Mass., Professor E. V. Robinson of the University of Minnesota, and Messrs. Gordon Allen and R. B. Seager, former members of the School.

The officers and students have greatly appreciated the friendly courtesy of the Minister of the United States and Mrs. Drovers, with whose household our relations have been most pleasant.

We are as usual greatly indebted to Mrs. J. Montgomery Sears for the renewal of her contribution of $1,500. Sincere thanks are also due Mrs. A. C. McGiffert, Miss Dorothy Richardson and Mrs. W. S. Ferguson for collecting money to be used in the purchase of a piano for the School. About $230 has been sent in for this purpose.

The Secretary reports the following names of those who have contributed books and pamphlets to the library: Professor Percy Gardner (1 vol.), British Museum (1), James Loeb, Esqr. (1), British School at Athens (1), Classical Department, Harvard University (1), French Ministry of Public Instruction (1), Greek Archaeological Society (1), Italian Archaeological School, Athens (1), Professor G. Mistriotes (1), Publishers of "Classical Philology" (1). Pamphlets have been received as follows: Bryn Mawr College (3), University of Colorado (1), Philological Society.
"Parnassos" (1), Messrs. M. C. Crispi (1), A. K. Orlando (1), A. J. B. Wace (1).

For the coming year the Committee on Fellowships reports the appointment of Ralph Walter Scott of Washington and Jefferson College, a graduate student at Princeton, as Fellow of the School, and as Fellow of the Institute that of Miss Eleanor Ferguson Rambo, a graduate of Bryn Mawr College. Mr. Scott started out on the ill-fated "Athinai" and was obliged to return to this country. He soon after sailed again. Miss Rambo, owing to the war, will not go out this year.

Professor Charles Forster Smith, who was to serve as Annual Professor last year has decided, with the concurrence of the authorities of the School, to wait another year before entering upon his duties. It is not likely that there will be more than one or at most two students in residence next year, and the disturbed state of affairs is of course not favorable to a scholar's work. We may however hope that the scientific occupations of the School's officers can be continued without excessive interruption.

The Managing Committee has learned with much satisfaction of Dr. J. C. Hoppin's plan to continue excavation at deeper levels on the site of the Argive Heraeum. It is greatly to be hoped that this plan may be carried out, as soon as the European situation is more favorable, for Dr. Hoppin's experience, and knowledge of the site, render him peculiarly fitted to carry out this much needed work.

In conclusion it is a pleasure to note in this time of international bitterness that the German Institute has elected Mr. Hill and Mr. Dinsmoor to its membership.

For the Managing Committee,
J. R. Wheeler, Chairman.
SCHOOL AT ATHENS

FACULTY AND STUDENTS

Faculty
1914-1915

BERT HODGE HILL, A.M.,
Director of the School.

Professor of the Greek Language and Literature.

WILLIAM BELL DINSMOOR, S.B.
Architect of the School.

CARL WILLIAM BLEGEN, A.B.
Secretary of the School.

Students


EMERSON HOWLAND SWIFT, A.B. (Williams College, 1912), Holder of the Williams College Greek Fellowship (1912-13), Fellow of the Archaeological Institute.

W. STUART THOMPSON, from the School of Architecture (Columbia University, 1912), Fellow in Architecture.

SCHOOL OF CLASSICAL STUDIES AT ATHENS

FACULTY AND FELLOWS

1915-1916

Faculty

BERT HODGE HILL, A.M.
Director of the School.

Professor of the Greek Language and Literature.

WILLIAM BELL DINSMOOR, S.B.
Architect of the School.

CARL WILLIAM BLEGEN, A.B.
Secretary of the School.

Fellows

RALPH WALTER SCOTT, A.B.,
Fellow of the School.
AMERICAN SCHOOL AT ATHENS

The American School of Classical Studies at Athens was founded by the Archaeological Institute of America in 1881, and is supported by the cooperation of leading American Universities and Colleges. It is in charge of a Managing Committee, and its property is vested in an incorporated Board of Trustees.

REGULATIONS OF THE SCHOOL

THE OBJECT OF THE SCHOOL

I. The object of the School shall be to furnish to graduates of American Universities and Colleges and to other qualified students an opportunity to study Classical Literature, Art, and Antiquities in Athens, under suitable guidance; to prosecute and to aid original research in these subjects; and to cooperate with the Archaeological Institute of America, so far as it may be able, in conducting the exploration and excavation of classic sites.

THE MANAGING COMMITTEE

II. The Managing Committee shall disburse the annual income of the School, and shall have power to make such regulations for its government as it may deem proper. Each of the Universities and Colleges uniting in support of the School shall have representation on the Committee. The President of the Archaeological Institute, the Director of the School, the Chairman of the Managing Committee of the American School for Oriental Study and Research in Palestine, and the Editor-in-Chief of the Journal of the Institute, shall be ex officio members of the Committee. The Professors of the School shall also be members of the Committee during their year of office and the year following. The Committee shall have power to add to its membership.

III. The Managing Committee shall meet annually, in New York, on the second Saturday in May. By special vote these
meetings may be held elsewhere. Special meetings may be called at any time by the Chairman. At any meeting, nine members of the Committee shall constitute a quorum for business.

IV. The officers of the Managing Committee shall be a Chairman and a Secretary. There shall also be an Executive Committee.

V. The Chairman of the Managing Committee shall be the official representative in America of the interests of the School. He shall present a report annually to the Trustees of the School. This report shall be printed in the publications of the Archaeological Institute of America.

VI. The Executive Committee shall consist of eight members. The Chairman, Secretary, the Treasurer of the Trustees, and the President of the Archaeological Institute of America, shall be "ex officio" members of the Executive Committee; the other four members shall be chosen by the Managing Committee in the following manner: at the annual meeting in May, 1901, two members of the Managing Committee shall be chosen to serve for two years and two members to serve for one year, and at each subsequent annual meeting two members shall be chosen to serve for two years. The Chairman and Secretary of the Managing Committee shall be the Chairman and Secretary of the Executive Committee.

VII. The Managing Committee shall elect from its members as its representative an Associate Editor of the Journal of the Institute.

THE DIRECTOR AND THE PROFESSORS

VIII. The work of the School in Greece shall be under the superintendence of a Director. He shall be chosen and his salary and the term for which he is chosen shall be fixed by the Managing Committee. He shall have charge of the School building, and shall be resident in Athens from the 1st of October to the 1st of July, with liberty to absent himself for short periods for purposes of exploration or research. He shall superintend the work of each member of the School, advising him in what direction to turn his studies, and assisting him in their prosecution. He shall have control of all excavations undertaken by the School. He shall make semi-annual Reports to the Managing Committee, in November and in May, of the work accomplished by the School.

IX. Each year the Managing Committee shall appoint from the instructors of the Universities and Colleges uniting in support of the School one or more Professors, who shall reside in Athens during the ensuing year and take part in the instruction of the School. The Committee may appoint other Professors and Instructors, as circumstances require. In case of the illness or absence of the Director, the senior Professor shall act as Director for the time being.

X. The Director and Professors shall give such instruction as they may deem desirable and shall have oversight of the work upon which students are engaged. They shall at times hold public meetings at which such students of the School as they may select, or other persons invited by them to take part, shall read papers on subjects of their study and research, or make reports on the work undertaken by them or by the School.

THE SCHOOL YEAR

XI. The School year shall extend from the first day of October to the first day of July. During this period a regular member of the School shall ordinarily reside in Athens; but permission may be granted him by the Director to travel and study for a limited time elsewhere in Greece, in Greek lands, or in Italy. Further, under exceptional circumstances, with the consent of the Director and of the Chairman of the Managing Committee, a regular member of the School may be permitted to prosecute special studies in countries other than those just named, provided such studies are supplementary to work already begun in Athens.

THE MEMBERS OF THE SCHOOL

XII. Regular members of the School shall be those who are enrolled for a full year’s work. Associate members may be admitted to the School for a shorter term, but not for a period of less than three months; they shall be subject to the same general regulations and shall be admitted to the same privileges as regular members.

XIII. Bachelors of Arts of cooperating Universities and Colleges, and all Bachelors of Arts who have studied at any of these institutions as candidates for a higher degree, shall be admitted
to membership in the School on presenting to the Chairman of the Managing Committee a satisfactory certificate from the University or College at which they have last studied, stating that they are competent to pursue courses of study at the School. Such members shall be subject to no charge for tuition. All other persons who desire to become members of the School shall make application to the Chairman of the Managing Committee, and if admitted they shall be required to pay a fee of $25 per annum for tuition and library privileges. Students occupying rooms in the School building shall pay a fee of $55 per annum. When rooms are taken for shorter periods, the fee will be $12 per month.

XIV. Every regular member of the School shall pursue some definite subject of study or research in Classical Literature, Art, or Antiquities, and shall present a paper embodying the results of some important part of his year's work, unless for special reasons he is excused from these obligations by the Director. His paper, if approved by the Director, shall be sent to the Committee on Publication, in accordance with the provisions of Regulation XXI. If approved by the Editorial Board of the Journal also, it shall be issued as a publication of the School.

XV. Excavation shall not be part of the regular work of a member of the School, but any member may, at the discretion of the Director, be permitted to take part in it. All work of excavation, of investigation, or of any other kind done by any member during his connection with the School, shall be regarded as done for the School and by the School, and shall be under the supervision and control of the Director.

XVI. No communication, even of an informal nature, shall be made by any member of the School to the public press, which has not previously been submitted to the Director and authorized by him.

XVII. Americans resident or travelling in Greece, may, at the discretion of the Director, be allowed to enjoy the privileges of the School, although not enrolled as students.

FELLOWSHIPS

XVIII. The Fellowships administered by the Managing Committee shall be awarded mainly by competitive examination.
FELLOWSHIPS
1916–1917
IN THE SCHOOL AT ATHENS

Two Fellowships in Greek Archaeology, with a stipend of $800 each, will be awarded for the year 1916–1917, at the American School of Classical Studies at Athens.*

The Fellowships in Archaeology are awarded chiefly on the basis of competitive written examinations, but other evidence of the ability and attainments of candidates will be considered. They are awarded for one year; a Fellow in Classical Archaeology, however, may, at the discretion of the Committee on Fellowships, be reappointed for a second term without an examination, on the recommendation of the Director and Professors of the School, but not more than one such reappointment will be made in any year, and no Fellowship in Classical Archaeology may be held for more than two years.

The holders of these Fellowships will be enrolled as regular members of the School, and will be required to pursue their studies, under the supervision of its Director, during the full school year. But Fellows may, with the consent of the Director, spend a limited portion of the year in residence at the School in Rome, under the supervision of its Director. In addition to his general studies, each holder of a Fellowship is required to prosecute some definite subject of special research, and, after the completion of the year, to present a paper embodying the results of his investigation. Twice in the year, namely on February 1 and July 1, each Fellow will make a report to the Chairman of the Committee on Fellowships, with regard to the use which he has made of his time. A somewhat detailed description of the

* One of these Fellowships is maintained by the Archaeological Institute of America. The Institute hopes to leave the amount of this stipend unchanged, but may reduce it to $600.
progress of his researches will be required. For the prosecution of his special investigation he may obtain leave, under certain conditions, to supplement his studies at Athens by researches elsewhere than in Greece. (See Regulations XI and XIX.)

Each candidate must announce in writing his intention to offer himself for examination. This announcement must be made to the Chairman of the Committee on Fellowships (Professor H. N. Fowler, Western Reserve University, Cleveland, Ohio), and must be in the Chairman's hands not later than February 1, 1916. The receipt of the application will be acknowledged and the candidate will receive a blank, to be filled out and returned to the Chairman by February 15, in which he will give information in regard to his studies and attainments. A copy of this blank may also be obtained at any time by application to the proper Chairman.

The examinations will be held in Athens, and at any of the universities or colleges represented on the Managing Committee of the School, on March 9-11, 1916.

The award of the Fellowships will be made, and notice sent to all candidates, as soon as practicable after the examinations are held. This notice will be mailed probably not later than May 1. The income of these Fellowships is paid in four equal instalments on September 15, December 15, March 15, and June 1.

The Fellowships of 1917 will be held in March of that year under conditions similar to those which are stated above. Special inquiries on the subject of the Fellowships of the School at Athens should be addressed to Professor Harold N. Fowler, Western Reserve University, Cleveland, Ohio.

INFORMATION FOR STUDENTS*

Students who desire to apply for admission to the School at Athens should address, if in America, the Chairman of the Managing Committee; if in Europe, the Director of the School. Information with reference to the School may be obtained from either of these officers. The application should be accompanied by a statement of the preparation of the applicant.

* During the war, much of the following information cannot be depended upon.
CONTRIBUTORS TO THE SCHOOL AT ATHENS
1914–1915

FOR CURRENT EXPENSES

For Adelbert College of Western Reserve University:

For Brown University:
This subscription is secured in perpetuity by “The Albert Harkness Fund for the Benefit of Brown University.”

Bryn Mawr College.

Columbia University.

Cornell University.

Dartmouth College:
A portion of the subscription depends on individual contributors.

For Harvard University:

Johns Hopkins University.

Leland Stanford Junior University.

Mt. Holyoke College.

Princeton University.

Smith College.

Syracuse University.

For the University of California:

(Total contributions to the Permanent Fund, $3892.24.)

† These contributed lectures.
University of Chicago.
For the University of Michigan:
University of Pennsylvania.
Vassar College.
Wellesley College.
Wesleyan University.
Williams College.
Yale University.
The Treasurer gratefully acknowledges also the following gifts:
For Excavations or other use.
Mrs. J. Montgomery Sears..........................$1500
Toward the Salary of the Secretary.
James Loeb, Esq..................................$500
Toward the Salary of the Architect.
Dr. Edward Robinson..................................$100

The Director gratefully acknowledges the following gifts:
Dr. Edward K. Dunham..............................franes, 250
Professor T. E. Hazen.............................$10.00
Mrs. Eustace Conway................................25.00
Professor T. R. Powell............................13.13
Through Mrs. A. C. McGiffert (for the purchase of a piano)....318.80